
 

 
 

Planning Board Meeting 
January 16, 2020, 6:00 pm 

Agenda 
 

1. Call to Order 

2. Roll call 

3. Approval of prior minutes of October 10, 2019 

4. Selection of Chair and Vice Chair 

5. Introduction of Jessica Hansen, Planning and Zoning Administrative Assistant 

6. Old Business: 

• Update on 2019 Cases 

• Zoning Code Update Discussion 

• Comprehensive Plan Gantt Chart Review 

7. New Business: 

8. Open Discussion 

9. Adjournment 





1 

  
 
 

 
BELLBROOK PLANNING BOARD 

PUBLIC MEETING MINUTES 
  October 10, 2019  

 
PRESENT:  Mr. Ed Stangel  
  Mr. Brady Harding 
  Mr. Denny Bennett 
  Acting Chairman Mitchell Thompson 
 
Jeff Green Planning and Zoning Administrative Assistant was also in attendance. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Chairman Thompson called the meeting of the Planning Board to order at 6:00 PM.  The Clerk 
called the roll.  Mr. Stangel, yes; Mr. Harding, yes; Mr. Bennett, yes; Chairman Thompson, yes. 
 
FORMAL APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Chairman Thompson asked if there were any corrections or additions to the minutes of 
September 19, 2019.  Being no changes, the minutes are approved as written. 
 
OLD BUSINESS   

 
NEW BUSINESS 

ZA19-06 Lot Combination Highview Terrace 
Request to combine two parcels (lot 51 and 52) in the Highview Terrace Subdivision into 
lot 51A.  
 

The Developer Rick Clemens explained that due to the steep terrain, the purchaser is wishing to 
combine the two lots and place the house in the center. 
 
The board asked how many times there have been revisions like this to the approved plans.  Mr. 
Clemens answered that there have been three. 
 
Mr. Bennett made a motion to approve the Lot Combination for lots 51 and 52 into lot 51A in 
Highview Terrace and forward to City Council.  Mr. Stangel seconded the motion.  The Clerk called 
the roll.  Mr. Bennett, yes; Mr. Stangel, yes; Mr. Harding, yes; Chairman Thompson, yes.  The 
motion passed 4-0. 
 
  



2 
 

OPEN DISCUSSION 

The board asked about the new Planning Board member.  Mr. Green answered that Council 
would be making the appointment on Monday, October 14.  The new board member will be 
attending the next meeting sometime in November. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

Mr. Bennett moved to adjourn the meeting at 6:12 PM and was seconded by Mr. Harding.   
 
 
 
Mitchell Thompson, Acting Chairman     Date 
 
     
Pamela Timmons, Secretary       Date 



 

1 | S t a f f  R e p o r t  
 

Staff Report  
Lot Number 176  

Winter Haven Block F 
Planning Board 

January 16, 2020 
________________________________________________________ 

 

1. Applicant Information 

Dan Devol 
Devol Builders 

2. Current Zoning District 
O-1 Office Building 
“The purpose of this district is to provide for the maintenance and alteration of existing 
buildings and for new construction of business office and professional buildings.” (Pg, 42 
Zoning Ordinance Bellbrook, Ohio) 
 

3. Parcel Number 
L35000200130009500 
 

4. Location 
Located at the intersection of Bellemeade Drive and Wilmington-Dayton Road in the Winter 
Haven subdivision. Approximately 1033 feet from the intersection of 725 and Wilmington-
Dayton Road.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

2 | S t a f f  R e p o r t  
 

5. Acres 
.26 Acres  
 

6. Surrounding Land Use within 1,000 Feet 

Primarily residential and commercial with open space to the immediate west, which is 
classified as agricultural according to the County Auditors land use code, however it is zoned 
PD-2 Planned Business. 

7. Summary of Request 
 
Mr. Devol would like to run the proposed site plan by the Planning Board to see what they think 
before submitting it for approval. Previously, a larger office was planned with more parking, but 
that never came to fruition. This new office space would be for he and his wife to work out of. 
The office will appear to be a residential structure so that when the Devol’s retire it can be sold 
as a residence or continue to operate as an office. The office will be ADA compliant as to 
accommodate everyone. 
 

8. Additional Information 

The original design in 2008 that was approximately 3000 square feet and 2 stories and didn’t 
meet the setback requirements for the zoning district. The current design is 1438 square feet 
and meets all set back requirements for the  O-1 Office Building District. (See blue highlighted 
August 21, 2008 BZA minutes for details, PG. 7) 

9. Previous Related Development Decisions in the Immediate 

Area (3 Years) 

None 

10. Comprehensive Plan 

Located in the Neighborhood District of the Comprehensive Plan.  “Bellbrook should protect 
its single-family residential platted lands or town lots (subdivisions) for that purpose and 
consider multi-family units on unplatted lands. Single-family development should all be 
considered on vacant lands but not part of a subdivision.” (Pg. 49 Bellbrook Comprehensive 
Plan) 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

3 | S t a f f  R e p o r t  
 

 
 

11. County Land Use Plan 

Medium Density Urban Residential- “Medium Density Urban Residential development 
describes areas allowing from three to six dwelling units per acre. The dominant dwelling type 
should be the single-family unit and two-family, with multi-family development at the greater 
densities of this range. Cluster developments which maintain an overall density of 3 to <6 
dwelling units per acre are encourage. Public water supply and sanitary sewer service shall be 
required for areas designated as Medium Density Urban Residential.” (Pg. 91, Perspectives 
2020 A Future Land Use Plan) 

12. Existing Utilities 
Utilities exist, connections are all that are required.  
 

13. Soil Data 
MrC Miamian-Urban land complex, well drained 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

14. Transportation Related Information 

Ingress and egress will be via Bellemeade Drive. Previously in 2008 when the proposed office 
was going to be larger, it was asked if access had been considered off of Wilmington-Dayton 
Road. (See the orange highlighted area of the August 21, 2008 BZA minutes Pg.7-8) Wilmington-
Dayton Road is classified as a Major Collector both by ODOT and The City of Bellbrook 
Comprehensive Plan. Bellemeade is a Local Road.  

According to the Bellbrook Comprehensive Plan ODOT Major Collector routes ‘are longer; have 
fewer connecting driveways’ have higher posted speed limits’ are spaced at greater intervals’ 
have more travel lanes.” (Pg. 41, Bellbrook, Comprehensive Plan) “Local Roads according to 
ODOT in the Bellbrook Comprehensive Plan are not intended for use in long distance travel due to 
their provision of direct access to abutting land. They are often designed to discourage through 
traffic”. (Pg. 41, Bellbrook Comprehensive Plan) 

Odot Crash Data shows low levels of crashes in and around area. See map below. 

 

 



 

4 | S t a f f  R e p o r t  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
15. Flood Plain Information 

N/A 
16. Comments from Review Agencies 

The Service Department and The Sheriff Department both have a slight concern with how 
close the office will be to the intersection of Wilmington-Dayton and Bellemeade Drive they 
both agree that with how little traffic this particular office will draw it shouldn’t be a issue. 

17. Summary and Staff Recommendation 
 
Overall the proposed office meets all the zoning requirements, including setback and parking. 
Being that the lot is small compared to the other lots in the subdivision this is possibly the best 
use for the lot as it currently sits. However, access should not be off Wilmington-Dayton Road 
as that is a Major Collector, access should be maintained on Bellemeade, the same as if it 
were a residential structure. Overall staff has no issues with the proposed site design plans.  























Prioritize Code Updates 
 
The Board chose the following topics to begin: 

• Accessory Structure/Uses  
• Lot Consolidation  
• Triggers for subdivision regulations – Compare to Greene County 
• Repeat Offenders (fines/punishments) 
• Fee Analysis – Jessica Hansen 
• Sign Code 


	2020-01-16 Agenda
	2019-10-10 Minutes PB
	Staff Report - Devol - Office - January 2020 New
	Staff Report - Devol - Office - January 2020 Supplemental Information
	PB Zoning code review 2020
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

